
Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Planning Board 
Wednesday September 21st, 2016; 3:00pm – 5:00 pm 

Tompkins County Chamber of Commerce/CVB, 904 East Shore Drive, Ithaca 

AGENDA  Start 
1. Opener – Sue Perlgut 3:00 
2. STPB Meeting Minutes 3:10   

 ACTION – Approve June Meeting Minutes
 ACTION – Approve July Meeting Minutes

3. Privilege of the Floor
 Limit of 3 minutes per person for members of the public to address the board

4. Chair’s REPORT – Anne Gossen 3:15   
5. Staff REPORT – Tom Knipe 3:20 
6. Membership & Bylaws Committee – Lynnette Scofield 3:25 

 ACTION – Recommend appointment of new Agriculture Representative
7. CVB Monthly Report – Peggy Coleman 3:30 
8. Agriculinary Tourism Implementation Plan – Ethan Ash 3:40 

 ACTION – Vote to Adopt the Plan
9. Strategic Tourism Implementation Funding Process – Ken Jupiter 3:55 

 ACTION – Vote to approve funding guidelines
10. CAP ‐ Market the Arts/General Operating Support Annual Report – John Spence 4:20   
11. Festivals Program Annual Report – Gary Ferguson, DIA Staff 4:40 

END by   5:00 

Agenda Packet 
1. June 2017 draft STPB meeting minutes
2. July 2017 draft STPB meeting minutes
3. New STPB Member Application – Agriculture Representative (to be sent to STPB members seperately)
4. Link: Updated draft Agriculinary Tourism Implementation Plan slated for adoption will be available

for download on Friday 9/16 via this page: www.tompkinscountyny.gov/tourism/tourism/plan
5. DRAFT Strategic Tourism Implementation Funding Guidelines

MISSION: The Strategic Tourism Planning Board is charged by the 
Tompkins County Legislature with providing oversight and strategic 
direction for tourism initiatives that promote economic development and  
enhance the quality of life in Tompkins County. 

 

9-21-16 STPB Agenda Packet Page 1 of 16



Date:  June 15, 2016  1 
Time:  3:00-4:30pm 2 
Location:          TC3 Extension, Ithaca Commons  3 
 4 
Attendees: 5 

Name  Representation 
Sue Perlgut  Arts-Culture 
Josh Friedman  Arts-Culture 
Cara Nichols  Ithaca College 
John Spence  CAP, Non-Voting 
Dwight Mengel A Transportation, Non-Voting 
Gary Ferguson  DIA, Non-Voting 
Jennifer Tavares E Chamber, Non-Voting 
Martha Armstrong  TCAD, Non-Voting 
Dan Klein  TC Legislature, Non-Voting 
Beverly Baker  Associate Member 
Carol Kammen  Associate Member 
Jon Reis  Associate Member 
Tom Knipe  Staff 
Pam Pariso  Staff 
 7 
 8 

 9 
Also in attendance: Ed Marx, TC Planning; Christy Agnese, former IC STPB member; Monica Roth, CCE; 10 
Diane Bradac, TWNY; Livia Isaacson and Rodney Fleming, CVB.  11 
 12 
Meeting Agenda 13 
1. April STPB Meeting Minutes  14 
2. Privilege of the Floor          15 
3. Principal Planner – Ed Marx         16 
4. Chair Report – Anne Gossen     17 
5. 2017 Budget Recommendations – Tom Knipe & Sue Stafford       18 
6. CVB Marketing Update Presentation –Rodney Fleming & Livia Isaacson    19 
7. Draft Agriculinary Tourism Implementation Plan – Ethan Ash & Tom Knipe     20 
8. Hospitality Workforce Development Program Annual Report – Diane Bradac  21 
9. Hospitality Star Graduation Ceremony 4:30-5:00       22 

  23 
The meeting was called to order at 3:07 PM by Vice Chair Ethan Ash. Chair Anne Gossen was present 24 
at the beginning of the meeting, but had to leave early because her son was ill.  25 
 26 
April 2016 STPB meeting minutes were approved with no changes. (There was no May meeting.) 27 
 28 
Privilege of the Floor 29 
New member Cara Rosenberg-Nichols from Ithaca College spoke on behalf her parents and RoseBarb 30 
Farm about an upcoming Healthy Food for All event August 10, 5-8 p.m. She asked everyone to save the 31 
date. More information is coming from Cornell Cooperative Extension.  Dan Klein introduced himself as the 32 
new County Legislature Liaison to the STPB. All welcomed him. 33 
 34 
Principal Planner Report - Ed Marx, Tompkins County Commission of Planning 35 
Ed Marx congratulated Tom Knipe for his recent promotion from five years as a Senior Planner to Principal 36 
Planner - Tourism Program Director. Ed stated that tourism is a county priority worthy of a director. He 37 
commended Tom on improving the grants application and evaluation process. Ed thanked all present for 38 
their work on the STPB and the subcommittees. Tom will continue his responsibilities of leading tourism in 39 
Tompkins County in the future. Sue Perlgut expressed concern that the board wasn’t directly involved in 40 
the decision-making process. Ed explained that Tom holds a Civil Service position, and that this was 41 

Name  Representation 
Anne Kellerman  At-Large  
Ian Golden  Recreation 
Ethan Ash  Arts-Culture 
John Gutenberger E Cornell 
Lynnette Scofield E Lodging 
Kelli Cartmill  Lodging 
Vacant  Agriculture 
David Blake   At-Large 
Andy Zepp  At-Large 
Stephen Nunley  At-Large 
Steve Hugo E At-Large 
Ken Jupiter  At-Large 
Mike Mellor  At-Large 
Anne Gossen  Arts-Culture  
Sue Stafford  TC3 

9-21-16 STPB Agenda Packet Page 2 of 16



County Personnel Department decision based on his job description and the increased level of 42 
responsibility which had evolved over time. The personnel decision was not based solely on Ed’s or Anne 43 
Gossen’s recommendation, but on Civil Service job descriptions from the county. Ed confirmed that one 44 
hundred percent of Tom’s job is focused on Tourism. Tom said he sees this as an evolution of the position, 45 
and doesn’t anticipate big shifts in the way the program operates. He’s excited about the formal leadership 46 
role, and looks forward to supporting the overall tourism program in moving to the next level. Tom thanked 47 
the board for their work and involvement.  48 
. 49 
Chair Report 50 

Ethan Ash gave the chair report in Anne’s absence. He congratulated Christy Agnese, who has51 
moved to Pennsylvania and has resigned from the STPB. Christy was recognized as a former52 
STPB vice chair and chaired or co-chaired several of its committees, including Budget, Marketing53 
and Advertising Grant Review, Wine Center Review and many grant committees. She’ll receive a54 
paver with her name on it. She said farewell and expressed to everyone how much she loved55 
working with the STPB and that she’ll miss everyone.56 
Tom Knipe introduced Dylan Tuttle, the first Stu Stein Memorial Heritage Tourism Intern for57 
Tompkins County. He’s a Cornell master’s degree student with a strong interest in agritourism and58 
will be working this summer on several action items from the Heritage Tourism Implementation59 
Plan.60 

•61 
62 

Ethan said the next meeting is July 27 at 3:00 and took a poll to see who would be able to attend. At 
least nine said they will attend. Anne Kellerman asked about virtual meeting as a way to assure a 
full quorum. Tom said we’d have to check the By-Laws.63 

 64 
Budget Recommendations – Tom Knipe & Sue Stafford 65 
Sue Stafford gave the overview, and Tom presented the detailed proposed budget. A summary of 66 
recommendations was provided in the agenda packet, and further details were provided are on the Tourism 67 
Program website. Individual board members asked about plans for Strategic Tourism Implementation funds, 68 
clarification on the status of the wayfinding project, and concerns about impacts of expansion of ACOD 69 
recipients without significant expansion of overall funding, and the board discussed these. Sue Stafford 70 
asked that the STPB hold a vote to recommend the proposed budget so it can be sent to the County 71 
Legislature for approval. Ken Jupiter made a motion to recommend the budget as presented. David Blake 72 
seconded the motion. Passed unanimously by show of hands. Sue was thanked for her leadership of the 73 
Budget Committee.  74 
 75 
CVB Marketing Update Presentation – Rodney Fleming & Livia Isaacson 76 
Livia and Rodney presented the CVB’s new social media strategy called “Ithaca is People.” The slides from 77 
their presentation are attached to these minutes. STPB members were invited to get involved.  78 
 79 
Hospitality Workforce Development Program Annual Report – Diane Bradac 80 
Diane Bradac talked about the Tompkins County Hospitality Star program, and gave ten key points for her 81 
annual report (see handout). This pilot program for the Hospitality Star was a huge success, and after her 82 
presentation and this meeting, all were invited to the lobby for a brief graduation ceremony and cake. 83 
Eleven graduates were honored.  84 
 85 
Draft Agriculinary Tourism Implementation Plan – Ethan Ash & Tom Knipe 86 
Tom and Ethan presented the draft executive summary of the Agriculinary Tourism Implementation plan, 87 
which is attached to these meeting minutes. Tom requested comments on the draft executive summary.  88 
Members are invited to comment on the full draft plan before being asked to vote to approve it in July.  89 
 90 
Several board members gave announcements about upcoming events. 91 
 92 
Meeting Adjournment 93 
Josh Friedman made motion to adjourn, Sue Perlgut seconded. All were in favor by verbal vote. 94 
 95 
With no further business, the meeting adjourned at 4:35 p.m. 96 

97 

•

•

9-21-16 STPB Agenda Packet Page 3 of 16



Respectfully Submitted, 98 
Pam Pariso 99 
Administrative Assistant 100 
Tompkins County Planning Department 101 
 102 
Next Meeting Scheduled 103 
July 27, 2016  104 

9-21-16 STPB Agenda Packet Page 4 of 16



Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Planning Board (STPB) 
Meeting Minutes – July 2016 

Page 1  

Date:  July 27, 2016  1 
Time:  3:00-4:45pm 2 
Location:          CSMA, 330 E. State St., Ithaca  3 
 4 
Attendees: 5 

Name  Representation 

Sue Perlgut  Arts-Culture 
Josh Friedman  Arts-Culture 
Cara Nichols  Ithaca College 
John Spence  CAP, Non-Voting 

Dwight Mengel A Transportation, Non-Voting 

Gary Ferguson  DIA, Non-Voting 

Peggy Coleman Chamber, Non-Voting 

Jennifer Tavares  Chamber, Non-Voting 

Martha Armstrong E TCAD, Non-Voting 

Dan Klein E TC Legislature, Non-Voting 

Beverly Baker A Associate Member 

Carol Kammen A Associate Member 

Jon Reis A Associate Member 

Tom Knipe Staff 
Pam Pariso  Staff 
 7 

 8 
 9 
Also in attendance:   Rita Rosenberg, former STPB member; Ronda Roaring, ilovethefingerlakes.com, 10 
Robin Tropper-Herbel, CSMA 11 
 12 
Meeting Agenda 13 
1. Welcome – Anne Gossen 14 
2. Tour of the CSMA – Robin Tropper-Herbel 15 
3. June STPB Meeting Minutes  16 
4. Privilege of the Floor      17 
5. Chair Report – Anne Gossen 18 
6. Staff Report – Tom Knipe  19 
7. CVP Quarterly Report – CVB Staff 20 
8. Draft Agriculinary Tourism Implementation Plan 21 
9. STPB 2016 Committee Goal Status 22 
10. STPB Mid-Year Goal Check-In – Small Group Discussion  23 
         24 
Community School of Music and Arts Tour – attendees received a tour by CSMA Executive Director 25 
Robin Tropper-Herbel of the Martha Hamblin Hall renovation.   26 
 27 
The meeting was called to order at 3:25 PM by Chair Anne Gossen after the tour.  28 
 29 
June 2016 meeting minutes – Unable to approve because there was no quorum.  30 
 31 
Privilege of the Floor  32 
Guest Ronda Roaring explained map delineations between two areas within the Finger Lakes by the USDA 33 
recognized American Viticultural Area, one for Seneca Lake and the other for Cayuga Lake. Ronda 34 
believes the boundary for the Cayuga AVA should be revised.  35 
 36 
Introductions 37 
Pam Pariso, new Tompkins County Planning Department administrative assistant was introduced.  38 
 39 
Chair Report 40 

Name  Representation 

Anne Kellerman E At-Large  
Ian Golden E Recreation 
Ethan Ash   Arts-Culture 
John Gutenberger E Cornell 
Lynnette Scofield E Lodging 
Kelli Cartmill E Lodging 
Vacant  Agriculture 
David Blake  E At-Large 
Andy Zepp A At-Large 
Stephen Nunley E At-Large 
Steve Hugo  At-Large 
Ken Jupiter  At-Large 

Mike Mellor  At-Large 
Anne Gossen  Arts-Culture  
Sue Stafford A TC3 

9-21-16 STPB Agenda Packet Page 5 of 16



Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Planning Board (STPB) 
Meeting Minutes – July 2016 

Page 2  

Anne thanked Tom, Ethan and Ken for attending the City Economic Development meeting to provide 41 
general information about the Tompkins County Tourism Program and STPB. It was well received and we 42 
will make a similar presentation to Common Council’s Planning committee meeting this fall. Several 43 
members attended a recent tourism sustainability webinar. Cornell engineering students tackled a 44 
wayfinding project; Jennifer and Tom took part in presentations which illustrated opportunities for stronger 45 
integration of how visitor information is provided by different groups in the community. On July 2, Tom was 46 
interviewed by Time Warner Cable news on the topic of the Airbnb Voluntary Collection Agreement.  47 
 48 
Staff Report 49 
Tom reported that he’s bringing the annual resolution to the County Legislature formalizing the CVB’s role 50 
as the County’s official Tourism Promotion Agency (TPA) in August. The 2017 tourism program budget was 51 
presented to the budget committee of the legislature in July. After August, the next regularly scheduled 52 
meeting of the legislature’s budget committee will be in November.  53 
 54 
In August, the P&E committee will discuss a process for allocation of Strategic Tourism Implementation 55 
funding which is expected to have a $200,000 balance for 2016 and 2017 combined. 56 
 57 
CVB Quarterly Report – Jennifer Tavares, Peggy Coleman 58 
Jennifer introduced Peggy Coleman, the CVB’s new VP of Tourism and Community Relations. Peggy has 59 
30 years of experience in the region and state, both on the hotel side as well as on the CVB side. Peggy 60 
introduced herself and gave the CVB’s quarterly report, which was included in the agenda packet. She 61 
reported that overall, the first half of 2016 has been stellar for the CVB. The Taughannock Falls Visitor 62 
Center has been a tremendous success, with a very high number of visitor interactions taking place. 63 
 64 
Draft Agriculinary Tourism Implementation Plan – Ethan Ash 65 
Ethan passed out the draft of the Agriculinary Tourism Implementation Plan to everyone present and asked 66 
for feedback. Once finalized, this report will be shared with broader stakeholders, such as wineries, 67 
distilleries, farmers, etc. for their feedback. It will be presented for final adoption at the September Board 68 
meeting.  69 
 70 
Ethan described the process that the board’s agriculinary tourism task force followed in developing the plan, 71 
and Tom summarized highlights from the document. Comments from Members included: 72 

 A suggestion that since there is no cohesive statewide agriculinary tourism program, the STPB 73 
could approach the state to choose this plan as a state-wide model. 74 

 A suggestion that the Appalachian Regional Commission may have grants available to tap into. 75 
 Mention about revolving loans for Ag. economic development as a possible approach.  76 
 Discussion of other ideas on how to increase grant funding. 77 
 A request for more time to comment on the draft (which is possible).  78 

 79 
STPB 2016 Goals 60-Second Status Update 80 
An update was given verbally by individuals representing each of the board’s 2016 goals, on progress 81 
made to date. 82 
 83 
STPB Goals – Mid-Year Check 84 
Everyone broke into small groups and reviewed the 2016 goals, then gave reports.  85 
 86 

Action-Oriented Goals 87 
A. Agriculinary Tourism Implementation Plan is successfully on track. 88 
B. Heritage Tourism Implementation Plan was successfully completed this past winter, and is being 89 
implemented 90 
C. Visitor profile study is on track. 91 
D. Key tasks for the communications plan have been identified and include: program logo, annual 92 
report for 2016, partner branding guidelines, and communications calendar.  93 
E. The Higher Education Tourism Working Group – all agreed that this area is a challenge and 94 
needs focus and continued work. Groups discussed barriers to success and how to overcome then. 95 

9-21-16 STPB Agenda Packet Page 6 of 16



Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Planning Board (STPB) 
Meeting Minutes – July 2016 

Page 3  

F. Outdoor Recreation Tourism Implementation Plan – most agreed that this is the next area of 96 
focus for planning work. The committee has been meeting and work is underway. 97 

 98 
Policy-Driven Goals 99 
H. P&E Committee – “Thresholds” have been established and will be monitored according to the 100 
policy that was adopted. 101 
I. Tourism Vision was discussed with Peggy Coleman, the new VP of Tourism.  102 
J. Diverse STPB representation – Some inventory work has been done, but this discussion should 103 
remain a priority for the board to engage in this year.  104 

 105 
Meeting Adjournment 106 
Josh Friedman made the motion to adjourn, Sue Perlgut seconded. All were in favor by verbal vote.   107 
 108 
With no further business, the meeting adjourned at 4:55 p.m. 109 
 110 
Respectfully Submitted, 111 
Pam Pariso 112 
Administrative Assistant 113 
Tompkins County Planning Department 114 
 115 
Next Meeting 116 
September 21, 2016  117 

9-21-16 STPB Agenda Packet Page 7 of 16



 

Page 1 of 9, 2016-2017 Strategic Tourism Implementation Funding Opportunity. Draft: Friday, September 2, 2016  

APPLICATION GUIDELINES  
2016‐2017 Strategic Tourism 
Implementation (STI) Funding Opportunity 
 
Approximately $200,000, combined from 2016 and 2017 budget 
years, is expected to be made available in the budget of the 
Tompkins County Tourism Program for Strategic Tourism 
Implementation (STI). The Tourism Program is funded by the 
County’s hotel room occupancy tax, with oversight and strategic 
direction for use of the funds provided by the Strategic Tourism 
Planning Board (STPB). The overarching purpose of STI funds is to 
support significant implementation of critical actions identified in the 2020 Strategic Tourism Plan 
and related tourism implementation plans. 
 
Funding Priorities 
Requests for STI funding will fit within one of the following three categories: 
 

Category A. Implementation of Critical Actions 
Please refer to the Tompkins County 2020 Strategic Tourism Plan for a complete 
description of critical actions. The plan and related implementation plans are available 
here: http://www.tompkinscountyny.gov/tourism/tourism/plan. A concise list of critical 
actions may be found on pages 36 and 37 of the Plan; letters of interest from lead 
organizations as well as organizations other than those referenced as lead organizations 
will be considered. 

 
Category B. Implementation of an STPB‐Adopted Tourism Implementation Plan 
Several detailed plans and strategies have grown directly out of critical actions from the 
2020 Strategic Tourism Plan. As such, Letters of Interest for projects which will 
significantly implement any the following tourism‐related plans will also be considered: 

a. Tompkins County Agriculinary Tourism Implementation Plan 
b. Tompkins County Heritage Tourism Implementation Plan 
c. Tompkins County Wayfinding and Interpretive Signage Plan 
d. Tompkins Priority Trails Strategy 
e. Tompkins County Outdoor Recreation Tourism Implementation Plan 
f. Tompkins County Beautification, Signage and Public Art Strategic Plan 
g. Cayuga Lake Blueway Trail Plan 

 
Category C. Internal Projects Identified as Priorities by the STPB/Tompkins County 
Tourism Program 
Examples of projects which may fit within this category include tourism research in 
support of strategic planning activities such as the Visitor Profile Study, and other 
programmatic priorities identified by the STPB, to be carried out by program staff. This 
category is not available to outside proposers. 

9-21-16 STPB Agenda Packet Page 8 of 16



 

Page 2 of 9, 2016-2017 Strategic Tourism Implementation Funding Opportunity. Draft: Friday, September 2, 2016  

Application Process 
Applications will be accepted in a two‐step process:  

 STEP ONE: During an initial round, Letters of Interest are requested by 10/21/16 and then 
will be accepted on a rolling basis until Nov 1, 2017 while funds last. 

 STEP TWO: The Strategic Tourism Planning Board (STPB) Planning & Evaluation Committee 
will review each letter of interest and then decide whether or not to invite a full proposal. 
A deadline for submission of full proposals will be established on a case‐by‐case basis. 

 
Contact / Program Officer 
Tom Knipe, Principal Planner/Tourism Program Director 
Tompkins County Planning Department    
121 E. Court St. Ithaca, NY 14850   
607‐274‐5560 
Email letters of interest to: tknipe@tompkins‐co.org 
 
Eligibility 
Both existing programs/projects and new programs/projects are eligible to submit Letters of 
Interest. This funding opportunity is not subject to the 60/40 split for tourism marketing/product 
development that is currently used as an annual budgeting guideline by the Tompkins County 
Tourism Program. This funding opportunity is designed to be flexible in terms of the types of 
proposals that will be considered and at the same time focused on direct implementation of 
critical actions from the 2020 Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Plan and tourism 
implementation plans adopted by the STPB. It does not replace or overlap with any existing grant 
program of the Tompkins County Tourism Program.   
 
Projects that are proposed directly by Tompkins County Tourism Program staff and/or the STPB 
(internal projects) are eligible for STI funding in any of the three categories listed.  For internal 
projects, there shall be no minimum request. Organizations other than the County Tourism 
Program and STPB are also eligible, however the minimum amount that may be requested by 
outside proposers is $25,000, and the maximum amount is $100,000. Outside proposers are only 
eligible for funding through Categories A and B. There is no match requirement for STI funding, 
but proposals demonstrating community support by way of matching financial and in‐kind 
support and demonstrating potential to leverage other funding may be rated more highly (see 
the evaluation criteria listed beginning on page 4 of this document). Funding awards will be made 
through a competitive process. 

 

Not all entities are eligible to receive funding from Tompkins County government. In general, a 
County government may award a grant to another municipality and certain not‐for‐profit 
agencies. Organizations currently funded through ongoing room tax budget allocations are 
eligible, and entities proposing new projects that are not currently funded through ongoing 
tourism budget allocations are also potentially eligible. Proposals for capital projects are 
potentially eligible. If you are unsure about your eligibility, please consult with the Tourism 
Program Director. 

 

9-21-16 STPB Agenda Packet Page 9 of 16



 

Page 3 of 9, 2016-2017 Strategic Tourism Implementation Funding Opportunity. Draft: Friday, September 2, 2016  

Limitations 
Proposals must demonstrate how the project will have an impact with this one‐time funding. 
Proposals that receive STI funding may be eligible to apply for additional funding through a 
different grant program of the Tompkins County Tourism Program or through a future annual 
budget request, but no continuation of funding will be guaranteed. 
 
While proposals must implement a critical action identified in the 2020 Strategic Tourism Plan or 
a related tourism implementation plan, not all projects that would support implementation of a 
critical action qualify. The following types of projects do not qualify to apply for Strategic 
Tourism Implementation funds; rather, these may qualify to apply for funding through one of the 
existing grant programs of the Tompkins County Tourism Program, or through the annual Tourism 
Program budgeting process. 

 New Tourism Initiatives for which the total one time request is less than $25,000. 

 An ongoing event or project that has been funded in the past through a Tourism Project 
Grant, New Tourism Initiative Grant, and/or Tourism Marketing and Advertising Grant and 
is not proposing a significant new offering. 

 Projects that are part of the current work plan of an existing program that is funded by 
the Tompkins County Tourism Program, and where a critical action will be best 
implemented through an alignment of existing resources.  

 
Programs that are currently funded by the Tompkins County Tourism Program who wish to apply 
for Strategic Tourism Implementation funds must demonstrate that their proposal represents a 
significant new offering that falls outside the existing core work program. However, projects must 
also fall within the mission and purpose of the applicant organization. Projects not within the 
recognized scope of the applicant’s mission are discouraged. 
 
Please refer to the Tompkins County Tourism Program’s website for information about other 
grant programs of the Tompkins County Tourism Program: www.tompkinscountyny.gov/tourism.  
Other grants may be available in these program categories: 

 Arts and Culture Organizational Development 

 New Tourism Initiatives 

 Tourism Projects 

 Tourism Capital 

 Tourism Marketing & Advertising 

 Town Beautification 

 Community Celebrations 
 
Application Timing 
Notice of Funding Availability will be made by September 23, 2016. Two‐page Letters of Interest 
are invited to be submitted on a rolling basis after this date and until funds are expended or until 
November 1, 2017, whichever comes first. An initial round of letters is requested by 5pm 
October 21, 2016. Letters of Interest will be reviewed in a timely manner by the Planning and 
Evaluation Committee of the STPB and full proposals may be invited from among projects for 
which a Letter of Interest is received.  
 

9-21-16 STPB Agenda Packet Page 10 of 16



 

Page 4 of 9, 2016-2017 Strategic Tourism Implementation Funding Opportunity. Draft: Friday, September 2, 2016  

Review Committee and Award Process 
The Planning and Evaluation Committee of the STPB will review Letters of Interest and decide in a 
timely manner whether or not to request full proposals based on Letters of Interest. A Strategic 
Tourism Implementation Review Committee (STIRC) will be formed to review and score full 
proposals based on the criteria below and recommend funding awards to the STPB. The final 
decision regarding funding awards will be made by the Tompkins County Legislature. Applicants 
are strongly discouraged from soliciting support from review committee members, STPB 
members or members of the legislature outside of this objective application and review process. 
In accordance with STPB bylaws, the chair of the STPB will appoint review committee members. 
The size of the STIRC will be between five and eight members. Committee membership will 
consist of at least three voting members of the Planning & Evaluation Committee of the STPB. A 
majority of review committee members shall consist of voting STPB members, but not all IRC 
members need be STPB members. Potential review committee members will be asked to disclose 
their organizational ties in order to limit conflicts of interest. 
 

Letters of Interest and full proposals may be evaluated independently or together as a pool. After 
Letters of Interest are reviewed, the Planning and Evaluation Committee will issue a letter to each 
applicant either inviting the applicant to submit a full proposal or not. Applicants invited to the 
proposal stage are not guaranteed funding. After awards are approved by the Tompkins County 
Legislature, funds will be disbursed pursuant to a contract with the County. Awards are not 
intended to be on a reimbursement basis; they will be made up‐front.  
 
Evaluation Criteria 
Full proposals will be evaluated and scored by the review committee based on how well they 
respond to the criteria below.  
 
Project Readiness. Does the proposal demonstrate readiness to use the funds and implement 
the proposed project within 12 months of being funded? 
 
Implements Critical Action or Strategic Priority. Does the proposal implement a critical action of 
the 2020 Strategic Tourism Plan or a related tourism implementation plan in a significant way? 
Does the proposal implement a strategic priority of the STPB as identified by adopted policies or 
plans?  

 

Project Benefits. How significant is the potential for direct, measurable tourism impact in 
Tompkins County? If developed, will there be economic benefits in Tompkins County in the form 
of additional hotel/B&B room nights and visitor spending? Are the expected economic benefits 
likely to be realized, given other constraints or barriers? Are there additional significant quality of 
life benefits?  

 

Project Outcome and Cost. Is the overall project cost justified based on the expected benefits? 
Relative to the project cost, how significant are the potential benefits? How appropriate are the 
applicant’s cost share contributions (sources and amounts) with respect to the degree of risk, 

9-21-16 STPB Agenda Packet Page 11 of 16



 

Page 5 of 9, 2016-2017 Strategic Tourism Implementation Funding Opportunity. Draft: Friday, September 2, 2016  

potential to benefit from the work, and financial status of the proposing organization and project 
team? 

 

Organizational Capacity. Is the proposed schedule of work clear and technically feasible? Does 
the project team have the right skills and experience to deliver? Does the organization have a 
demonstrated history of success in carrying out similar projects? 

 

Demonstration of Community Support. Does the project demonstrate potential to leverage 
funds from regional, state, private, and/or local sources other than room tax? Are matching cash 
and in‐kind contributions secured or likely? Is evidence of partnerships provided? Although no 
match is required, applications demonstrating community support by way of matching financial 
and in‐kind support will be rated more highly on this criterion. Does the full proposal contain 
Letters of Commitment from participants, co‐funders, and related businesses and other 
organizations? 
 
Other Considerations. Proposals will be reviewed for eligibility and to determine if they reflect 
the Tompkins County Tourism Program’s overall objectives, including: encouragement of diversity 
and sustainability, coordination with similar ongoing or completed tourism projects, the general 
distribution of tourism projects among organizations and among focus areas identified by the 
strategic tourism plan, and the geographical distribution of projects within Tompkins County. 
 
Requirements. Outside proposals must:  
 Have the potential to directly implement a critical action identified by the Tompkins 

County 2020 Strategic Tourism Plan or a related strategic tourism implementation plan. 

 Demonstrate the potential for direct or indirect economic benefits through additional 
room nights and visitor spending in Tompkins County. Projects which will improve the 
community’s tourism infrastructure over the long‐term are encouraged.  

 Provide additional quality of life benefits to residents of Tompkins County. 
 
Attachments. For those projects invited to the full proposal phase, a Budget Worksheet and a 
Statement of Work may be required as attachments. In addition, you may include any 
qualifications, drawings or ancillary information that is necessary to support your proposal. If 
appropriate; also include: 
 
Letters of Interest or Commitment. If you are relying on any other organization to provide 
services, equipment or cost share, include a letter from that organization describing their planned 
participation. However, due to their active sponsorship of this solicitation, Letters of Interest or 
Commitment should not be solicited from Strategic Tourism Planning Board members, members 
of the Tompkins County Legislature or staff of the Tompkins County Tourism Program. Where 
appropriate, proposers should include planning or policy documents of the STPB as evidence of 
priority. Also include letters of interest or commitment from team members, businesses or other 
organizations critical to the success of the project.  
 
 

9-21-16 STPB Agenda Packet Page 12 of 16



 

Page 6 of 9, 2016-2017 Strategic Tourism Implementation Funding Opportunity. Draft: Friday, September 2, 2016  

 
STEP ONE Application Directions – Letter of Interest 
The Letter of Interest should be no more than two pages long and should be provided on the 
organization’s letterhead. The subject line of your letter must include the project title and 
expected amount of the request. The letter should include a description of the project and 
organization, a statement about the need or opportunity, and a description of how the project 
implements a critical action from the 2020 Strategic Tourism Plan or related tourism 
implementation plan. It should also state a specific dollar amount or range that would be 
requested and other sources of funding and support. Also include the proposed project start 
date, deliverables, and date of delivery. Submit your Letter of Interest as a .pdf document via 
email to tknipe@tompkins‐co.org.  
 
STEP TWO Application Directions – Full Proposal  
If invited to submit a full proposal, please provide complete and concise answers to all questions 
in the application narrative. You may use as much space as needed, up to a maximum of 10 pages 
for the narrative. Attachments may be required for larger projects: a Budget Worksheet and a 
Statement of Work. Applicants will be informed whether these elements will be required to be 
submitted with the full proposal at the time they are invited to submit a full proposal. There is no 
page limit for attachments. Applicants are encouraged, but not required to submit letters of 
support/commitment from key partners. Do not submit the proposal guidelines with your 
proposal; the application cover page should be the first page of your proposal. Submit one .pdf 
file containing your entire proposal via email to tknipe@tompkins‐co.org. 
 
Program Budget Worksheet – Required Attachment for Large Full Proposals 
Large full proposals will be required to include a program Budget Worksheet alongside the 
narrative. This is not the organizational budget, but a budget for the project for which you are 
requesting grant funding. Please start with the Budget Worksheet Template that is provided as a 
Microsoft Excel document. All major categories of expenses should be listed. In addition, if your 
project will receive funding or in‐kind support from sources other than the Tompkins County 
Tourism Program, please list revenues from other sources and/or the value of in‐kind support in 
the designated space. An overall organizational budget is not required, but please do provide the 
percentage of your organization’s overall annual budget that the project would constitute.   
 
Statement of Work – Required Attachment for Large Full Proposals 
Applicants invited to submit full proposals for large projects will be required to include a 
Statement of Work. The Statement of Work should, at a minimum, include project start and end 
dates, a project schedule, deliverables, and roles and responsibilities of key people or 
organizations. Strong proposals will also include specific measures of success and means of 
tracking progress towards those. This is the document that describes how you will implement 
your proposed project, and achieve the objectives that you have set out for the project. 
 
Reporting 
Successful applicants will be required to file a final grant report, and may also be required to file 
interim reports. Reporting expectations and format will be articulated upon award of funds. 

9-21-16 STPB Agenda Packet Page 13 of 16



 

Page 7 of 9, 2016-2017 Strategic Tourism Implementation Funding Opportunity. Draft: Friday, September 2, 2016  

 
Assistance 
Please call or email the program officer if you have any questions or need help putting together 
your application. Submission of drafts for review and feedback prior to the application deadline is 
encouraged. 
 

9-21-16 STPB Agenda Packet Page 14 of 16



 

Page 8 of 9, 2016-2017 Strategic Tourism Implementation Funding Opportunity. Draft: Friday, September 2, 2016  

APPLICATION (FULL PROPOSALS) 
2016‐2017 Strategic Tourism Implementation 
Funding Opportunity  
 
I.  BASIC INFORMATION 

Project/Proposal Name:              

Applicant Organization:              

Contact Person:     _______________    ______ 

Phone:          Email:          

Request:  $          

Instruction: You may use up to 10 pages to answer the questions in the narrative section.  

II.  PROPOSAL DESCRIPTION 
Describe your proposed project. Include a description of project deliverables and date of delivery. 
 
III.  STRATEGIC TOURISM IMPLEMENTATION 
Document how your proposal responds to goal(s) and action(s) of the Tompkins County 2020 
Strategic Tourism Plan and/or a Strategic Priority of the STPB. Identify under which STI funding 
category you are applying. Describe how your proposal aligns with the aims and policies of the 
Tompkins County Tourism Program. 
 
IV.  EXPECTED BENEFITS 
Describe, in as much detail as possible, the specific economic and quality of life benefits that you 
expect this project to deliver. 
 
V.  ORGANIZATION DESCRIPTION 
Provide a description of the applicant organization(s), its mission, board/governance, annual 
budget, year founded, key staff, how this proposal fits with other activities, and record in 
implementing similar types of projects. 
 
VI.  BUDGET NARRATIVE 
Describe how you propose to use the requested funds. 
 
VII.   IMPACT OF FUNDING 
What would be the specific impact(s) on the project of receiving less funding than you are 
requesting? 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
____Attachment A ‐ Budget Worksheet – REQUIRED for large projects (template provided) 

____Attachment B – Statement of Work – REQUIRED for large projects (no template) 

____Other Attachments ‐ OPTIONAL 

9-21-16 STPB Agenda Packet Page 15 of 16



 

Page 9 of 9, 2016-2017 Strategic Tourism Implementation Funding Opportunity. Draft: Friday, September 2, 2016  

Qualifications, letters of commitment/support, drawings or ancillary information 

This page is for your information only.  Please do not submit 
it with your proposal. 
 
 
PROPOSAL CHECKLIST 
Please review the following checklist prior to submitting your funding request. 
 

1) ____ A Letter of Interest is submitted. 
 
If invited to submit a full proposal, continue to #2.  If not invited to submit a full proposal, stop 
here. 

 
2) ____ Questions I through VII are answered completely and concisely, in no more than 

ten pages (proposal narrative) 
 

3) ____ The budget worksheet is completed using the template (required attachment) 
 

4)         The Statement of Work is complete and accurate (required attachment) 
 
5) ____ Optional attachments are provided as needed 

 
6) ____ The proposal narrative, required attachments, and any optional attachments are 

compiled into a single .pdf file. 
 

7) ____Email this proposal file electronically to tknipe@tompkins‐co.org no later than 
the specific deadline established for your proposal. Mailed, faxed or hand‐delivered 
proposals will not be accepted. Upon receipt of your complete proposal, you will 
receive an email confirmation of receipt. 

 
 

If you do not receive a confirmation via email by the end of business on the day the 
letter or proposal is due, please follow up to ensure that your letter or proposal was 
received! 

 

 

9-21-16 STPB Agenda Packet Page 16 of 16



CVB Report to the Tompkins County Chamber of Commerce Board of Directors 

September 21, 2016 – Peggy Coleman, VP Tourism & Community Relations 
 

August has been a busy month for the CVB team!  We’ve hosted a lot of guests in the county this month: 

media, group leaders, tour operators, and conference planners.  We’ve serviced a tremendous number 

of visitors at the three visitor centers.  We’ve assisted the County Tourism Program on strategic 

priorities, and we were designated as the official Tourism Promotion Agency for Tompkins County by the 

legislature.  Here are a few highlights for August:    

 

Visitor Services ‐ Taughannock has tremendously exceeded our expectations: 

2014 Combined DVC & ESD annual walk in traffic:  17,029 

2015 Combined DVC & ESD annual walk in traffic:  17,048 

2016 Combined DVC, ESD & Taughannock Jan‐Aug walk in traffic:  32,248  

The Visitor Services Department has hired two new staff members this summer:  Glenn Tobey is an 

Integrated Marketing student at Ithaca College and hails from Syracuse, NY.  Danielle Baker is a local 

(grew up in Groton) and holds a degree from Johnson & Wales in Travel & Tourism.  Please join me in 

welcoming them to the Visitors team during a record setting year! 

We participated in Cornell University’s Grad Student Fair, had a booth at the College of Agriculture and 

Life Sciences (CALS) family orientation session at Mann Library and presented to the CALS visiting 

fellows.  

While helping record numbers of people at the Visitor Centers this summer, our team has also been 

developing a pilot ambassador training program with Workforce NY, continued co‐location talks with the 

Heritage Tourism group, and started 2017 Winter Recess talks.  

Sales – We may be small but we are mighty: 

Eight leads were distributed in the month of August, resulting in one is still under consideration, two 
converted to booked business, three lost bookings and, two withdrawn 
The bookings represent 454 room nights with an economic impact of $112, 052  
One of the pending leads is the Create Upstate Conference which is a referral from Downtown Ithaca 
Alliance for April 2017.  
 

We have identified China as an international market for new visitation to the county.  NYS Division of 

Tourism has in‐country representation in three cities in China.  Ithaca/Tompkins County Airport has 

regular requests on the general aviation side for charter arrivals from China.  There is a natural affinity 

for our destination due to the quantity of Chinese students at Cornell as well as a large alumni 

population.  We have partnered with I Love NY on a familiarization tour of five Chinese travel buyers and 

one in‐country I Love NY China representatives.  The experience was highly successful, with buyers 

identifying product offering they would be able to sell which includes Ithaca.  Sarah Imes will attend a 

sales mission with I Love NY to China in October, further nurturing this market.  To make our destination 

more prepared to host Chinese visitors, the CVB will be providing training to tourism partners.     

 

We have posted the open Meetings & Conference Sales Associate position and expect to have the 

department team at full strength.    



Marketing – Holy cow it’s been a busy month: 
Parents Weekend Campaign: “Come for them. Stay for you.” 
The goal of the campaign is to get parents already coming to Ithaca for Parents Weekend to stay an 
extra day or two into midweek overnight stays. This campaign kicked off August 22, 2016 and will run 
through early November. The following mediums have and will be used to drive parents to packages and 
deals on VisitIthaca.com created specifically for Parents Weekend: 

‐                      Two pop‐up photo booths during Cornell & IC Student Welcome Weekends 
‐                     “5 Things to Do During Parents Weekend” rack cards distributed to 1000+ 
students during Cornell & IC Welcome Weekends 
‐                      Google AdWords targeted to Cornell & IC Parents 
‐                      Facebook Posts targeted to Cornell & IC Parents 
‐                      Promoted blog post to Cornell and IC Parents, as well as two student welcome 
events public & Students 
‐                      Total impressions (thus far): 57,182 

  
Media Hosting:  In August, we hosted several members of the media including a journalist from the LA 
Times (UMV: 32 million) on assignment for a multi‐page feature on cultural attractions in the region. The 
feature will run in summer 2017.  In addition, we hosted a writer from the Toronto Sun as a result of our 
participation in Cross Border Showcase: A Welcome Surprise! 
  
PR efforts: 
The PR efforts in partnership with Quinn & Co have resulted in Ithaca being featured in two recent 
articles on Thrillist.com (UMV: 3,047,773), including Firelight Camps highlighted as one of the “Most 
Romantic Weekend Getaways from NYC”.  
   
Trumansburg was featured #7 on the list of “10 Small Towns In New York That Offer Nothing But Peace 
And Quiet” from OnlyinYourState.com (Readership: 30,000,000). 
  
Instagram Update: 
People cannot seem to get enough #IthacaisPeople! In 14 weeks since the Ithaca is People launch, the 
@VisitIthaca Instagram has skyrocketed from 717 followers to 2,500! Future takeovers will continue 
driving engagement with our Visit Ithaca brand, including the Director of Wizarding Weekend Darlynne 
Overbaugh, local Food Network star & co‐owner of Firelight Camps Emma Frisch. 
 
IthacaEvents.com has been redesigned, events have been uploaded, and we are making final changes 
and adjustments before going live! 
  
Upcoming Projects:   

Visitor Profile Study – we are nearing going to contract to launch the updated Visitor Profile Study, 

pending clarification from partner organizations on expected deliverables and clarification for the 

proposed vendor, YMG, based on these clarifications.  The goal is to go to contract prior to  

October 1, 2016. 
 

   


	6-15-16 STPB Minutes Draft.pdf
	Attendees:
	Also in attendance: Ed Marx, TC Planning; Christy Agnese, former IC STPB member; Monica Roth, CCE; Diane Bradac, TWNY; Livia Isaacson and Rodney Fleming, CVB.
	Meeting Agenda




